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Statement of the Chairman and the Chief Executive

Highlights

¢ Revenue from continuing operations up 29 3% to £18 32m (2007 £14 17m), of which £1 43m 1s from
Traffichnk

s Profit before taxation on continuing operations up 30 5% io £4 79m {2007 profit of £3 67m), of which
£0 19m 1s from Traffichnk

e Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations were 3 2p (2007 52p} Continuing
basic and diluted earnings per share before the effects of tax increased 29 7% to 4 8p (2007 3 7p)

s Final dividend proposed of 1 5p
« The nationwide CFVD® system with Be-mobile in Belgium 1s now fully operational and profitable
+ Significant growth from international business with projects including China, South Africa and Russia

e Acquisition of Traffichnk in December 2007, the UK's leading distributor of traffic incident and travel
information to broadcasters, business and Government in December 2007

¢ Renewal of TMC traffic contracts with Jaguar, Land Rover, Renault and Nissan and new contract with
Garmin

» New contract to supply traffic information on Nokia mobile devices the UK announced today

Stuart Marks, Chief Executive of ITIS commented “This has been a record year for ITIS in terms of both
revenues and profits from continuing operations We anticipate revenue from the international markets 1s set to
grow sirongly this year as we now convert prospects into customers and as we continue to find new countries
that are eager to deploy our technologies Qur acquisition of Traffichnk has brought immediate benefits to the
qualty of our information in the UK and we are now implementing operational synergies between the companies,
which will enable us to grow both businesses ITIS enjays a reputation for market leading technology combined
with unparalieled commercial success and we are buillding on these strengths to expand our business around
the world ”

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31st March 2008, revenue from continuing operations increased by 29 3% to £18 32m (2007
£1417m) Following the sale on 27 March 2007 of NavTrak Limited, the Group’s stolen vehicle tracking
subsidiary, to Cobra Automotive Technologies spa, £4 62m of revenue for the year ended 31 March 2007 has
been presented as discontinued Revenue for the year ended 31st March 2008, also included a revenue
contribution of £1 43m from Trafficlnk Limited (“Trafficink™) post its acquisition on 7 December 2007 Revenue
arose predominantly from the Group's UK business, being traffic data sales to RDS-TMC customers, data sales
to local and central Government and other third party organisations as well as from customers using the Group’s
various mobite telephone information services

Whilst the majonty of the UK's traffic business costs are fixed, there has been a step change of just under £0 5m
in those fixed costs during the year, mainly as a consequence of establishing a data centre This necessitates
additional annual communications, licensing and running costs but allows all hve systems to be run from one site
of the highest qualty with extensive capacity for expanston Addiional FM bandwidth has been acquired to
improve the quality and coverage of the businesses’ TMC service Traffichnk, the nature of its cost base being
primarily fixed, also increased the fixed cost base of the Group

On a Group basis, continuing profit before taxation was £4 79m (2007 £3 67m) Trafficlink contributed £0 19m
profit before taxation post its acquisition During the year a deferred tax asset of £1 49m was released, which
created a taxation debit of £1 49m (2007 credit of £1 49m) in the profit and loss account
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Statement of the Chairman and the Chief Executive

Financial overview {continued)

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations were 3 2p (2007 52p) Continuing basic and
diluted earnings per share were up 29 7% to 4 8p (2007 3 7p), before the effects of tax

On 7 December 2007, ITIS purchased Traffichnk Limited for £2 18m and repaid certain loans within Traffichnk of
£8 32m Purchased with Trafficlink were 1ts approx £10m tax losses which are availabie for Trafficlink to use
against its future trading profits  This cash outflow on Traffichnk, the purchase and fit out of the data centre and
the payment of a maiden dividend of £1 42m in February 2008 ali contributed to reducing the year end cash
balance to £1 96m (2007 £11 57m)

Following the High Court approval given on 23 January 2008 of the resolution passed at the Company's
extraordinary general meeting on 22 November 2007 for the elimination of an accumulated deficit on its profit
and loss account of £33,520,972 by the cancellation of the whole of the amount standing to the credit of its share
premium account, a dividend of 1 5p per share was paid on 29 February 2008 in respect of the 2006/7 year

The Board of IT!S will declare a final dvidend each year The Board will recommend to shareholders at the
Company's forthcoming AGM that a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008 of 1 5p per will be paid on
29 September 2008 to the members on the register at the close of business on 5 September 2008

The Board would like to thank all of the management and staff for their huge contribution to this year's results
and for their hard work, especially the extensive travelling undertaken by the international development team
We would like to welcome too, the staff of Trafficlink and we are confident that together both businesses will he
able to offer exciting new services to our customers

UK BUSINESS

For the year In review, the UK market generated the majonty of our revenues and profits, which grew
substantially by £3 72m (of which Trafficlink contributed £1 43m) and £0 68m (of which Traffichnk contributed
£0 19m) respectively We continue to work closely with our customers In the UK and are finding ways to
ntroduce new products and applications using both our real time and historic data In the last few months we
have renewed important RDS-TMC contracts with Jaguar, Land Rover, Renault and Nissan

Contracts with General Motors and the DfT were not renewed Whilst progress has been made in replacing the
revenue and profit from these lost contracts and we do expect growth from existing customers, these contract
losses will impact on the performance in the UK in this current financial year

it 1s too early In the year to comment on whether the crisis in the credit market will affect our revenues from new
car sales and the personal navigation device (PND) market, though penetration of navigation systems in the car,
which 1s still our largest market, 1s less than 10% of all new vehicles sold We are seeing evidence of our traffic
service becoming bundled as standard on more PND devices, and we continue to win new customers, notably
Garmin and Nokia ITIS has been selected as the UK data provider for Nokia's delivery of real ime traffic reports
to their mobile handsets with bult In GPS This contract 1s part of a European wide solution via Arc
Transistance ARC Transistance was founded in 1991 by the 8 major automobile clubs in Europe, including the
UK.

Revenues from our IVR (Interactive Voice Response) business were flat this year which we believe to be partly
attnbutable to lack of significant promotion from the mobile networks and the dramatic increase in navigation
systems equipped with RDS-TMC which pravide high quality information to the driver However we are working
on Iintroducing some new services and content to users which takes advantage of the Traffichnk data and
broadcast facility We expect the first of these to be available next month

ITIS 15 extending its association with Mobile Commerce, a leading mobile content aggregator and distributor,
enabling companies to deliver content to mobile users via Mobile Commerce’s best of breed mobile content
delivery platform The latest development wili bring ITIS's content to AA mobile users  In addition, ITIS has
recently developed bespoke IVR telephone services delivering real tme traffic content, enhanced by live studio
additional broadcast bulletins, for both Mobile Commerce and BSKYB This follows on previous and ongoing
IVR associations with both ClearChannel (The Hound brand) and the RBS Group (Tracker brand)
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Statement of the Chairman and the Chief Executive

UK business (continued)

ITIS continues to provide several UK Local Government authonties with both live and historic traffic speed and
journey time information to be used as part of therr local transport planning Our data set has now been
enhanced by incident data from Traffichnk and thus will help in providing higher quality predictive journey time
information Additionally, various expert traffic consultants including JourneyDynamics, Kingswood
MapMecharnics and Faber Maunsell have been provided with ITIS's floating vehicle data (FVD®) for use n traffic
planning, logistic and traffic congestion monitoring applications The public sector 1s under considerable cost
pressure and we therefore expect that sales made to local Government will generate only modest revenues

Working with Global Traffic Network's new European subsidiary, ITIS and Trafficlink will be delivering content to
the Highways Agency radio station Globat Traffic Network are the leading provider of custom traffic and news
reports to radio and television stations in Canada and Austraha

ITIS continues to develop products for Government and industry using the historic dataset now including
information from Traffichnk This combined database 1s unique and we are having considerable success in
selling information to those who wish to provide better predictions on journey times and to create their own
products where the combination of historic and real tme information provides a supenior expernence for the
customer

We continue to attract new visitors and members to our own traffic website, www keepmoving co uk One
particularly successful new service has been the availability of ive cameras on the site so that users can look at
both speed and flow data and live pictures side by side

TRAFFICLINK

ITIS acquired Traffichink on 6th December 2007 Traffichnk 1s the UK's leading distributor of traffic incident and
travel information to broadcasters, business and Government Key customers include the BBC, the Highways
Agency and through an exclusive agreement with UBC Media, 185 commercial radio stations

Traffichnk gathers, edits and broadcasts traffic and travel information from a network of seven regional offices
(London, Bnstol, Brrrmungham, Cardiff, Manchester, Middlesbrough, Edinburgh) that operate 24 hours per day, 7
days a week REGIS, Trafficink’s data aggregation tool, covers the entire UK road network as well as all forms
of public transport and aggregates real-time traffic and travel information from over 5,000 CCTV cameras, police
forces, government agencies, local councils and other sources

The acquisition enables ITIS to expand its strong presence within the UK market, adding value to existing
services and enriching both companies’ content offerings to customers Whilst the previous arrangements
between ITIS and Trafficlink have been commercially successful for both parties, ITIS believes that the pace of
development and increasingly competitive environment made 1t the right time to control end to end data quality
and extend its business mode!

Shortly prior to the acquisition, Trafficlink’s contract with the BBC was renewed for three years to provide traffic
and travel information to ali local and national BBC stations Trafficlink is the contracted suppher of Traffic and
Travel news to the BBC The service includes streaming of live data to BBCi and Ceefax Information and
editonal support to BBC TV, BBC Radios 2 and Five Live and BBC Local Radio Live bulletins to BBC Local
Radio and BBC Wales and recorded audio for BBC1  Trafficlink also works with the BBC on new and innovative
ways to bring up to the minute travel news to the BBC audience across a variety of platforms Trafficlink has
been a supplier of Traffic news to the BBC since November 1998, and the current contract runs until 2011

A further major contract for which the company was bidding did not matenalise and therefore it 1s now unlikely
that there will be any payment of deferred consideration

Our customers have reacted well to our acquisition of Trafficlink and we are working actively with a number of
them to find ways of using the umique combination of high quality incident data with speed and flow information
to add value to what is provided already In particular with the increased focus on green motoring and multi-
modal travel, Trafficlink 1s 1n a very strong position to fuse road traffic and public transport information to create a
complete journey management dataset
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Statement of the Chairman and the Chief Executive

INTERNATICNAL

We are extremely pleased with the momentum we are now achieving with our international business and we
have partnerships developing throughout the world which leads us to believe that revenues will grow significantly
year on year Since we first started deploying our Ceflular Floating Vehicle Data (CFVD ) platform awareness of
this technology has become more widespread leading to greater knowledge from the mobile operators and in
turn more willingness from them to work with companies like ITIS

Our business model 1s to find licencees or develop joint ventures in order to mimimise nisk and have strong local
representation We also need to work closely with mobile operators In each country and consequently the
Company has to make certain investments in order to bring the technology to market and generate revenues
within an acceptable tmescale The upside of this 1s that ence the system becomes fully operational, the model
becomes profitable

In Israel Qur technology centre 1s responsible for the development and installation of CFVD® Since acquining this
technology 1n 2003 we have continued to invest in the team there and believe that access to highly skilled
people In the areas of Geographical Information Systems, Wireless Networks and GPS has enabled us umquely
to roll out nationwide systems quickly and reliably

In July last year Dr Gary Gates was promoted to the board as international Development Director and Gary has
successfully built a strong team around him with responsibility for business development and partner support

Europe, Middle East and Afnca (EMEA}

Our business model In this region has produced a profit for the first ime mainly from the Belgian market and the
ptot in Spain Our second nationwide CFVD® system (the first being in Israel) 1s now fully operational in Belgum
and Be-mobile, our licensee, I1s generating on-going revenues through a wide range of contracts with the media,
mobile operators and nawvigation system vendors A major share holder in Be-mobile s Touring (Belgum's
largest motoring club) whilst cellular data 1s provided through an exclusive 5 year deal with Proximus, the largest
mobile operator in Belgium

In Spain we successfully completed a pilot project using data from the Telefonica mobile network which was
showcased at 3GSM, the largest mobile event In the world and we are exploring this market further with potential
local partners In the Republic of lreland our licensee, 1Traffic, 1s working with O2 Telefonica Ireland and will be
launching a fully commercial service early next year In Israel our business continues to develop strongly and we
are supplying traffic nformation on IVR to the tweo largest mobile operators, Orange IL and Cellcom, and to
Telmap, a leading provider of navigation solutions in the Czech Republic we have successfully completed a pilot
with our local partner CEDA using network data from T-mobile and commercial discussions are underway for the
next phase of this project

In Russia we have appointed a licensee and have already started to identify suttable customers and a mobile
operator Moscow suffers from very bad traffic congestion and this coupled with the recent boom in navigation
systems there gives us confidence that this will be an important market for our technology

In South Africa we have formed a joint venture with Altech Netstar, the leading stolen vehicle tracking and fleet

management company 1n Africa We are currently rolling out our technologies and a range of services which will
closely replicate our UK services
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Directors

Americas

As previously announced, a new contract with revised milestones has now been signed between Delcan, our
partner iIn America, and Missouri Department of Transportation {MoDOT) to enable ITIS to supply Statewide real
time traffic information We expect the financial contribution to be modest and there 1s no guarantee that MoDOT
will commit to the full extent of the contract

Whilst the roll-out of technology in the US has been slower then we have hoped we have identified several
projects in Canada and South America and we are currently In the process of working with mobile operators and
potential icensees to work out the business case and timescales for deployment in these countries

Asia Pacific

We are particularly excited by the business we are generating in Asia Pacific region In Australia our licensee
Traffic Inteligence, in conjunction with major pariners, has commenced the design stage of a national traffic
service which will be launched in the second quarter of the financial year ending 31 March 2009 and will cover
approxumately 70,000km of roadway The service will use a combination of data sources including the ITIS
CFVD® technology Intelematics, our RDS-TMC licensee in Australia, successfully launched a commercial RDS-
TMC service this year In Singapore, we are pleased to collaborate with SingTel on therr latest Live Traffic
Services, which enables customers to view real-time traffic information The service also provides estimated
traveling tme and costs for customers' easy reference The services will be demonstrated at
CommunicAsia2008 SingTel 1s Asia's leading communications group providing a portfolio of services including
voice and data services over fixed, wireless and Internet platforms It has a network of 37 offices in 19 countnes
and terntories throughout Asia Pacific, Europe and the United States Together with its regional partners,

SingTel 1s Asia’s largest mult-market mobile operator, serving more than 185 millon mobile customers in eight
markets

QOur partnership with ITOCHU 1s progressing well and we are working closely with them throughout the Asia
Pacific region  We have identified opportunities in most countries but in particular Malaysia, Thalland, Taiwan
and China In China we are demonstrating our technology in four regions as part of an initiative with a mobile
operator to use CFVD® to provide high quality traffic data throughout China If successful this has the potential to
be a large part of our business in Asia we do not expect major revenues in the near future as the Olympic games
will prevent any technical work occurring on the mobile network during this period

7. CURRENT TRADING AND PROSPECTS

We are encouraged by the rate of growth of our International business and ITIS’s posiion as a world leader in

the traffic information et The Board views with great confidence the profitable expansion of ITIS into new
markets

Sir Trevor Chuinn, CVO, Chairman

Stuart Marks, Chief Executive
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Directors

Stuart Marks, Chief Executive

Stuart Marks, aged 41, 1s the founder of ITIS Holdings, and has fifteen years’ expenence in the service industry He
was the founder and Chief Executive Officer of Handling Solutions Limited, a company which specialises in
database-led promotional fulfilment, direct mail and customer loyalty programmes The company was later sold to
Park Group plc In 1997 he established Module Commumications, which grew to become a leading new media
company, and was sold to Grey Advertising in 1999

Jonathan Burr, Chief Technology Officer

Jonathan Burr, aged 47, graduated from the University of Oxford in 1982 and in 1985 quallfied as a Chartered
Accountant with Touche Ross Management Consultants In 1987 he joined Avis Europe plc and in 1993 became
Director of Business Development Europe for Capital Fleet Services In December 1996 GECFS appointed him as
Managing Director, Benelux and then as Managing Director, UK and Ireland in September 1996 He joined ITIS
Holdings in January 2000

Andrew Forrest, Finance Director

Andrew Forrest, aged 40, graduated from the University of Bath, with a degree in Electronic and Communication
Engineenng in 1990 He qualfied as a chartered accountant with Cassons in 1993 and joined ITIS Holdings in May
2000 io assist with the flotation process He was appointed as Finance Director in November 2002

Dr Gary Gates, International Business Director

Dr Gary Gates, aged 39, graduated from the University of York in 1991 with a degree in Theoretical Physics and
obtained a PhD 1n Computational Physics in 1993 He became a Chartered Physicist in 1995 In 1994, he joined
British Energy to work on a number of key research projects and moved to BNFL in 1986 In 1998 he moved to
Norway to manage BNFL's nuclear fuel research programme In 2000, he moved back to the UK to lead BNFL's fuel
performance team Gary joined ITIS Holdings in January 2001 as Product Development Manager and then
International Business Director in 2004 He was appointed to the ITIS board in July 2007

Sir Trevor Chinn, CVQ, Chairman

Sir Trevor Chinn, aged 72, 1s Senior Adviser, CVC Capital Partners Ltd, Chairman of Aurora Russia Ltd, an AIM hsted
investment company established to acquire interests in private companies in Russia which are focused on the
financial, business and consumer services sectors, Charrman of Streetcar Limited, the UK's largest car club operator
and Charrman of Vigilant Technology Ltd, an AIM listed Israell company which supphes ‘inteiligent’ solutions for the
high-end CCTV secunty and surveillance market He was appointed Chairman of ITIS Holdings in September 2000
He was Chairman of the AA from September 2004 untii September 2007 when it was sold He was Chairman of Kwik-
Fit from November 2002 when it was acquired by CVC until August 2005 when 1t was sold He retired in Apn! 2003 as
Chairman of RAC plc (formerly Lex Service PLC) after 47 years' service He became Managing Director in 1968,
Chairman and Chief Executive in 1973 and Chairman in September 1996, having appointed a Chief Executive In
1999 he was appointed by the Deputy Pnme Minister, John Prescott, as Vice Chair of the Commission for Integrated
Transport, stepping down in June 2004 He was also asked to form and continues to chair the Motonists” Forum He
was awarded the CVO in 1989 and a krughthood in 1990 for his chantable activies
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John Hewett, Non-Executive Director

John Hewett, aged 44, 1s Chief Executive of Smedwg Capital, a London based venture capital firm he founded with
Peter Smedvig in 1996 He sits on a number of boards in connection with Smedvig Capital investments Prior to this,
he was a management consultant with Bain & Company and an investment banker with NatWest Markets He has an
MBA from Harvard Business School He was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of ITIS Holdings in April 2000

Steven Norris, Non-Executive Director and Senior Independent Director

Steven Norns, aged 63, was a Member of Parliament from 1983 to 1997 and Minister of Transport from 1992 to 1996
He retired 1n 1997 to be Director General of the Road Haulage Association He was the Conservative candidate for
Mayor of London in 2000 and 2004 He 1s currently Executive Chairman of Jarvis plc, Charrman of AMT-Sybex Group
Ltd and a director of a number of other companies In the transport field He 1s Senior Partner of Park Place
Communications, a specialist In transport, land use and planning policy He 1s President of ITS UK, the trade
association of the UK telematics industry, and a former President of the Motarcycle Industry Association He was the
first Chair of the National Cycling Strategy Board He 1s a leading authonty on transport policy in the UK Hewas
appointed as Non-Executive Director of ITIS Holdings in May 1997
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Directors’ report
For the year ended 31 March 2008

The directors present therr annual report on the affairs of the Group, together with the financial statements and
audttors’ report, for the year ended 31 March 2008

Enhanced Business Review

ITIS 1s a leading international provider of traffic snformation The Group 1s focused on one activity, namely the
provision of road traffic and data services through its subsidianes Integrated Transport Information Services Limited,
ITIS UK Limited, Traffichnk Limited and ITIS Traffic Services Limited (collectively ITIS) On 6 December 2007, The
Group acquired Trafficink Limited, a company which collects, processes and disseminates journalistic traffic data,
manly to the broadcast market There was no significant change in the Group's principal activiies in the year under
review The directors are not aware, at the date of this report, of any likely major changes in the Group’s activities in
the next year

The Statement of the Chairman and the Chief Executive, which forms part of this report, describes the development of
the business during the financial year and the autlook for the future

ITIS has continued to invest in and develop a family of traffic probe technologies that generate high quality traffic
information through sampling data from vehicles travelling on a given road network The products, applications and
services that ITIS has invested in, developed and continues to develop are shown below

Products

TrafficScience

The software platform that ITIS has developed over several years to support diverse applications which ITIS and its
partners develop These applications deliver information through a variety of media {web, mobile phone voice
messages, short message text, e-mail, radio, digital, phane) to enable users fo get information about their journeys
which i1s timely and accurate TrafficScience produces reliable, high-quality real-time and histoncal traffic information,
suitable for a range of applications and users The Group's patented FVD® technology gives ITIS a distinct advantage
in providing detailed information that covers wide geographic terntones - often nationally - at a lower cost than was
previously possible To its partners, ITIS’s software platform is the basis for their applications, generating new and
Increased revenue streams

SOFTWARE PLATFORM

TrafficScience™

coLLecT \ DETECT \ PUBLISH |

Provide

Taledata Add vaiue wharmation

Fom meskgle fo'he data o diverse

sources applcaons
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Directors’ report (continued)

CFVD

Cellular Floating Vehicle Data® (CFVD) 1s technology developed and patented by ITIS to derive high-quality traffic
information from cellular networks ITIS has developed and operates patented technology to enable the measunng
and forecasting of traffic flow based on anonymously sampling the position of mobile phones The system
complements ITIS GFVD™ traffic information application ITIS CFVD® technology can prowide highly accurate traffic
data as a result of the large concentration of mobile phones and because all major cities in the wortd support mobile
phone networks ITIS set up a subsidiary (ITIS Traffic Services Limited) based in Tel Aviv to continue the
development of the CFVD technology This Israeli operation i1s a research and development centre

GFVD
GPS devices in vehicle fleets provide GPS Floating Vehicle Data® for TrafficScience to transform into high-quality
traffic information

Applications
ITIS' technology supports a wide vanety of applications, many of which are developed with its business partners

Interaclive Voice Response
Interactive Voice Response (IVR) 1s a fully automated traffic information service generally provided to users on therr
mobile phone whilst travelling, although it can also be accessed from landlines for pre-tnp planning

RDS-TMC

RDS-TMC is a European-developed and standardised means of delivenng real-ume traffic information via a sub-
carrier of FM radio Transmitted data 1s decoded by a receiving device such as a satellite navigation system and
translated into text or speech traffic alerts By combining traffic information delivered wa RDS-TMC with the re-routing
faciities offered by satellite navigation systems dnivers are afforded dynamic avoidance of traffic congestion ITIS
supports sixteen car manufacturers and all of the aftermarket vendors with a national RDS-TMC service and has over
600,000 dnvers using the service

Services

Delivering successful projects, reliably and on schedule, 1s helped by the methodologies ITIS uses in the services it
provides

Hosted Services for TrafficScience

ITIS provides its software platform, TrafficScience™, as a hosted service Applhications built by iis customers and
partners interact with TrafficScience™, and it 1s important for ITIS to provide the highest level of service to them The
Group’s pnmary data centre 1s in the UK It 1s a custom-built facility in which it has invested more than £1 million since
2006

Deployment of TrafficScience with DRIVE

The methodology ITIS uses to deliver successful projects 1s called DRIVE Its carefully controlled phases are
designed to ensure that all the essential steps are carned out to the required standard Deployment of TrafficScience
involves sourcing appropnate data, implementing the platform, and delivenng the resultant traffic information to
applications Since ITIS' focus I1s on providing the platform, rather than developing applications, this methodology 1s
also designed to ensure that partners developing applications are in positicn 1o begin their development at an early
stage, using reliable simulation data
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Directors’ report (continued)

The Group continues to invest In research and development as the directors regard such investment as necessary for
continuing success in the medium to long-term future

Results and dividends

As shown In the Group income statement on page 30, the Group's continuing sales have increased by £4 2m (23%)
over the prior year As much of the cost base on the UK road traffic and data services side of the group 1s fixed, this
has resulted In an increase to gross profit of £2 7m (29%) over the previous year There has been a step change in
the UK fixed cost base dunng the year, with additional fixed costs being incurred in the Traffichnk business acquired
(£0 9m n the four months since acquisition)

The consolidated balance sheet on page 32 of the financial statements shows that the Group's financial position at
the end of the year 1s consistent with the prior year in both net assets and cash terms, after taking into account the
acquisition of Trafficlink (£10 8m cash outflow), the payment of a maiden dividend {£1 42m cash outflow), the
purchase of a new data centre and its associated fit out / equipment costs (£1 Om cash outflow} and the working
capital movements associated with the increase in profitability Cash has decreased dunng the year from £11 57m to
£196m

There have been no significant events since the balance sheet date

ITIS Holdings plc managed its operations dunng the year as one activity, which was the provision of road traffic and
data services both in the UK and overseas

The continuting Group profit for the financial year, after taxation and dividends, amounted to £1,782,447 (2007 -
£5,156,256) The continuing Group profit before taxation for the financial year amcunted to £4,792,683 (2007 -
£3,670,163) Following court and shareholder approval, a dividend of £1,417,012 {2007 - £nil) was paid during the
year

In the peniod since its acquisition, Traffichnk has contributed £1 43m to the Group’s turnover and £0 19m profit before
taxation

Principal nsks and uncertainties

Competitive activity in the UK and elsewhere in the world 1s a continuing nsk for the Group, which could result in it
losing sales to its key competitors The Group manages this nsk through the provision of high quality data, added
value services to its customers, maintaining strong relationships with customers and by continuing technological
advances In its research and development

In providing services or data, the Group relies upon third party data suppliers and certain third party contractors
There Is always a nsk that the Group could be let down by one or more of these suppliers The Group muinimises this
nsk by good project management and clear line of sight of the end deliverables
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Directors’ report {continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties {continued)
Certain of the Group’s transactions are undertaken in foreign currencies and it 1s therefore exposed to movements In

the various exchange rates The Group's treasury function, where it considers it to be appropriate, takes out contracts
to manage this nsk at a Group level

In trading overseas, the Group has adopted a low nsk strategy by forming partnerships and licensing its technology to
interested parties

The Group has developed a strong patent portfolio, which enables it to control and protect its technology and gives it
the design freedom required to maintain technical superionty in the field The strategic management of ITIS’
intellectual property, particularly its patent assets, means ensunng thatits patent nghts are aligned with the
commercial advantages of its traffic probe technologies, extending territonal patent coverage to support the Group's
international business objectives and maintaining a leading position having regard to competitors The Group ensures
that sts sirategic decisions lake account of the evolution of the patent landscape

Contingent liabilities

As stated last year, a subsidiary of the Group I1s involved In a patent ktigation case in Israel Itis the view of the
directors, in ight of advice from legal counsel, that it 1s unlikely that a hability will arise from this itigation and no
provision has therefore been made for any such losses in these financial statements Further details are given in note
26

Environment

The nature of the Group's business means that the Group's activities have very little impact on the environment The
Group recognises though the importance of its environmental responsibilities, monitors its iImpact on the environment
and designs and implements policies to reduce any damage that might be caused by the Group's activiies Initiatives
designed to minimise the Group’s tmpact on the environment include safe disposal of waste and assets no longer in
use, recycling and reducing energy consumption

Share premium and dividend

Following the High Court approval given on 23 January 2008 of the resolution passed at the Company's extraordinary
general meeting on 22 November 2007 for the elmination of an accumulated deficit on its profit and loss account of
£33,520,972 by the cancellation of the whale of the amount standing to the credit of its share premum account, an
interim dividend of 1 5p per share was paid on 29 February 2008
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Directors’ report (continued)

Directors

The directors who served dunng the year, together with their interests in the ordinary 2 pence shares of the company

at 31 March 2008 and at 1 Apnil 2007 were as follows

Beneficial holdings

Share options

Ordinary

shares of

2p each

2008

Sir T Chinn CVO (Chairman) 1,732,240

S A Marks (Chief Executive) 31,165,751

J Burr 166,665

A D Forrest 426,126

G Gates (appointed 23 July 2007) -

* J Hewett' 250,000
** S Norns 800,000

Ordinary
shares of
2p each
2007

1,732,240
31,165,751
166,665
26,126
200,000
750,000

Qrdinary
shares of
2p each
2008

1,500,000
2,000,000
600,000
425,000

Ordinary
shares of
2p each
2007

1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000
425,000

* Non-executive director
* Senior Independent director

1 John Hewett 1s the board representative of Smedvig Capital AS, the holder of 15,550,212 ordinary shares of 2p
There have been no changes In directors’ interests between the year end and 17 June 2008

The directors have no other interests required to be disciosed under Schedule 7 of the Companies Act 1985

Stuart Marks and John Hewett retire by rotation at the next Annual General Meeting and, being ehgible, offer

themselves for re-election Brief biographical details of these directors are set out on pages 6 and 7

Information given to auditors

Each of the persons who I1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

(1) so far as the director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are unaware,

and

(2) the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information and to estabhish that the company's auditors are aware of that information

This information 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provision of section 2347A of the

Companies Act 1985
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Directors’ report (continued)

Directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for prepaning the annual report, directors’ remuneration report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year The directors are required
by the IAS Regulation to prepare the group financial statements under International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union The group financial statements are also required by law to be properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and the AIM Rules

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that IFRS financial statements present fairly for each financial year the
company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows This requires the faithful representation of the
effects of transactions, other evenis and conditions in accordance with the defiritions and recogrition criteria for
assets, llabiliies, income and expenses set out n the International Accounting Standards Board's 'Framework for the
preparation and presentation of financial statements' In wirtually all ercumstances, a far presentation will be
achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRSs However, directors are also required to

. properly select and apply accounting policies,

. present information, including accounting pohcies, In a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information, and

. provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the enlity’s
financial position and financia! performance

The directors have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accerdance with United Kingdom

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) The parent

company financial statements are required by law to give a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the company In

prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to !

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
. make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures

disclosed and explained in the financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the parent company financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and
hence for taking reasonabie steps for the preventon and detection of fraud and other iregularities

The directors are responsible for the mantenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included on

the company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparaticn and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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Directors’ report (continued)

Supplier payment policy

It 1s company and Group policy to agree and clearly communicate the terms of payment as part of the commercial
arrangement negotiated with suppliers and then to pay according to those terms based on the timely receipt of an
accurate invoice The proportion of trade creditors at 31 March 2008 to amounts supplied during the year to the
Group gives an average payment term of 29 days (2007 - 19 days)

Donations
Chantable donations during the year amounted to £3,180 (2007 - £3,442) There were no political donations In either
year

Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, beanng in mind the aptitudes of the
applicant concerned In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort 15 made to ensure that their
employment with the Group continues and that appropnate traiming is arranged It 1s the policy of the Group that the
training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of
other employees

Employee consultation

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep them informed
on matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the Group This s
achieved through formal and informal meetings Employees’ representatives are consulted regutarly on a wide range
of matters affecting their current and future interests

Research and development

The Group continues an active programme of research and development, the costs of which in the year amounted to
£1,795,392 (2007 - £1,826,817) The costs incurred reflect the Group’s investment in traffic information and
associated services
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Directors’ report (continued)

Substantial shareholdings
On 16 June 2008, the company had been notified in accordance with sections 198 to 208 of the Companies Act 1985
of the following interests in the ordinary share capital of the company

Number of % of 1ssued

Ordinary share

2p shares capital

Mr S A Marks 31,165,751 3097
Smedwvig Capital AS 15,550,212 1545
Universities Superannuation Scheme Limited 4,005,000 398
ITIS Holdings plc EBT 3,975,420 395

International Financial Reporting Standards

In accordance with AIM Rules, the group has implemented international Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS") for the
first time for s 2008 financial statements The financial statements and comparative information for the year ended

31 March 2007 are prepared in accordance with IFRS The key standards that have had an impact on the Group are

IFRS 1 First tme adophon of IFRS,

IFRS 3 Business combinations,

IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations,
IAS 14 Segment reporting,

IAS 17 Leases,

IAS 18 Revenue,

IAS 38 Intangible assets, and
IAS 39 Financial instruments

Auditors

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as the company's auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting

By order of the BoA

Station House
Stamford New Road
Altnncham

Cheshire WA14 1EP

17 June 2008
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Corporate governance
For the year ended 31 March 2008

The company 1s commutted to the principles of corparate governance contained in the 2006 FRC Combined Code
(‘the FRC Code'), which i1s appended to the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty and for which the Board
1s accountable to shareholders Although, as an AIM listed company, not required to, the directors have elected to
provide corporate governance disclosures

Statement of comphance with the Code of Best Practice
Throughout the year ended 31 March 2008, the company has been in compliance with the Code provisions set outin
Sechon 1 of the FRC Code, with the following exceptions

Board composition

The Board has one independent non-executive director, Steven Noms John Hewett 1s not considered to be
independent by wirtue of the fact that he 1s the board representative of Smedvig Capital AS, which has a significant
shareholding in the company

Consequently, throughout the year the company has been unable to comply with the following paragraphs of the FRC

code 1n relation to compaosition of the Board and its committees

. A 3 2 — A smaller company should have at least two independent non-executive directors
. A 4 1 — A majonty of members of the nomination committee should be independent non-executive directors
. B 2 1 — The Board should establish a remuneration committee of at least, in the case of smaller companies,

two members, who should all be independent non-executive directors

. C 3 1 — The Board should establish an audit committee of at least, in the case of smaller companies, two
members, who should all be iIndependent non-executive directors

In addition, the fact that the Chairman sits on the remuneration and audit committees 1s at vanance with provisions
B21and C31above

The Board does not believe it necessary te appoint further independent non-executive directors at this ime and
believes that the current Board composition 1s appropriate for the size and nature of the Group

Performance evaluation

Dunng the year, the performance evaluation of the executive directors by the remuneration committee has taken
place However, performance appraisal of the Board, its commuttees, the charman and the non-executive directors
has been on an informal basis only This Is at vanance with Principle A 6 of the FRC Code, which states that the
Board should undertake a formal and ngorous annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees
and indwidual directors  The Board believes informal evaluation, carmed out by the Board itself, 1s adequate and
appropriate for the current size of the Group

16 ITIS HOLDINGS PLC




Corporate governance (continued)

Statement about applying the Principles of Good Governance

The company has applied the Pnnciples set out In Section 1 of the FRC Code by complying with the Code provisions
as reported above Further explanations of how the pnnciples have been applied are set out betow and, in connection
with directors’ remuneration, in the remuneration report

Board operation

The Board of directors 1s set out on pages 6 and 7 The Group has achieved a balanced Board by the inclusion of
two non-executive directors, under the leadership of Sir Trevor Chinn, who serves as chairman of the Board,
chairman of the audit and nomination committees and also serves on the remuneration committee

Certain defined 1ssues are reserved for the Board to decide, including

. strategy and management, including approval of the Group's objectives and commercial strategy, oversight of
the Group's operations and review of Group performance,

] Group structure and capital,

. financial reporting and controls, including approval of financial statements and circulars,

] ensunng maintenance of a sound system of internal control and nsk management, and

] directors’ appointments, service agreements and remuneration

Timehness and qualty of Board information

The Board has sought to ensure that directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings by
establishing procedures for distnbuting Board papers in advance of meetings, considenng the adequacy of the
information before making decistons, and adjourning meetings or deferring decisions when directors have concerns
about the information available to them

100% attendance was recorded for all meetings of the Board, audit and remuneration commitiees, which numbered
eight, four and one respectively Dr Gary Gates attended all Board meetings held post his appointment

The Board considers that it has shown its commitment to leading and controiling the company by communicating the
Group's development to the employees through its management structure throughout the year

Appointments to the Board

The Board follows formal and transparent procedures when appointing directors In the Board’s wiew the appointment
of Dr Gary Gates in July 2007 was a good example of this Dr Gates was known by and had worked with the Board
since January 2001, and had been appointed International Business Director in 2004, before his appointment to the
Board

The terms and conditions of appointment of non-executive directors are avallable for inspection at the company’s
registered office during normal business hours and at the Annual General Meeting
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Corporate governance (continued)

Statement about applying the Principles of Good Governance {continued)

Board performance evaluation

An assessment of the performance of the executive directors was carnied out dunng the year by the remuneration
committee Informat assessment of all remaining directors, the Board and its commitiees was also camed out

Regular re-election of direclors

All directors are subject to re-election by rotation every three years, as required by Provision A7 1 of the FRC Code
As disclosed in the Directors’ report, Stuart Marks and John Hewett are offening themselves for re-election Bnef
biographical details of these directors are set out on pages 6 and 7

Following the performance evaluations carned out in respect of John Hewett, the Board proposes his re-election as a
director The Board asserts that John Hewett's performance continues to be effective and to demonstrate
commitment to his role

Dralogue with institutional investors
The directors seek to build on a mutual understanding of objectives between the Group and its institutional
shareholders by attending a number of meetings throughout the year with analysts and institutional shareholders

Constructive use of Annual General Meeting
The Board has sought to use the Annual General Meeting to communicate with private investors, with the directors
and committee chairs making themselves available for questions

Investors are also able to visit the company’s website at www.itisholdings com

Maintenance of a sound system of internal control

In applying Principle C 2 of the Combined Code that the Board should maintain a sound system of internal control to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets, the directors recognise that they have overall
responsibility for ensuring that the Group maintains a system of internal control to provide them with reasonable
assurance regarding effective and efficient operations, internal control and comphiance with laws and reguiations
There 1s an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant nisks faced by the Group, which
has been in place throughout the year ended 31 March 2008 and up to the date of signing of these financial
statements This process is reviewed regularly by the Board and accords with the Turnbull guidance However, there
are inherent imitations n any system of internal control and accordingly even the most effective system can provide
only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

In recognition of the importance of the maintenance of a sound system of internal control, the Group has an internai
audit department, which investigates different areas of the Group’s activities and reports back its findings to the Audit
Committee

Responsibility for designing and operating the system is delegated to the executive directors The Audit Commuttee

has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control environment, the Group's financial statements and the
scope of the work undertaken by the internal and external auditors against matenal misstatement or loss
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Corporate governance (continued)

Maintenance of a sound system of internal contrel {continued)
The Group recognises that employees who raise concerns are an asset and employees are provided with a procedure
by which concerns may be raised without repnsals in any form

In compliance with provision C 2 1 of the Combined Code, the Board continuously reviews the effectiveness of the
system of internal controls Key elements include

. Clearly defined organisational structure with lines of responsibility and delegation of authonty to executive
management, who are accountable for the conduct and performance of the business within the agreed
business strategy

. Detailed Group-wide budgeting with the annual budget approved by the Board There 1s monthly reporting of
results to the Board, including a comparnson of actual results to budget at each operational level and revised
forecasts to executive management

. Control of key financial nsks through clear authorisation levels and proper segregation of accounting duties
Sigruficant capital projects and acquisitions and disposals require Board approval

. The Group has established controls and procedures aver the secunty of data held on computer systems and Is
in the process of strengthening disaster recovery arrangements These arrangements will be tested regularly

. The budgetary reviews include the identification and assessment of business and financial nsks Executive
management is responsible for the identffication and evaluation of key nsks applicable to their areas of
business The audit committee reviews the nsk assessment from senior management together with the reports
from the internal and external auditors

. The audit committee 1s responsible for moritoring the controls in place and determines any corrective action
that it considers I1s appropriate in respect of internal control issues raised by the internal and external auditors
The external auditors have an opportunity to meet the audit committee without any executive directors being
present

Audit committee

Sir Trevor Chinn, John Hewett and Steven Norns served on the audit committee throughout the year, with Sir Trevor
Chinn as chairman These directors also form the nominations committee Details on the qualifications and
expenence of these directors are given on pages 6 and 7

In reporting financial results to shareholders, the committee depends on the skill, objectivity and independence of the
external auditors  In the year ended 31 March 2008, the committee obtained confirmation of the auditors’
independence
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Corporate governance (continued)

Maintenance of a sound system of internal control {continued)
Audit comrittee {continued)
The commuttee’s areas of activity dunng the year included

* assessment of independence of auditors,

° approval of auditors’ re-appointment and fees,

L approval of scope of internal audits,

. review of the findings of external audits,

L] approval of management representations to the external auditors,

] review of financial statements and results announcements,

. review of arrangements for reporting and investigation of employee concerns,

. review of internal audit findings and monitoring of effectiveness of internal audt,

. review of effectiveness of the Board’s internal controls and nsk management process,
] assessment of internal and external audit effectiveness, and

) recommendation of new terms of reference for committee and internal audit function

Going concern

After making enquines, the directors have formed a judgment, at the time of approving the financial statements, that
there I1s a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements

Sir Trevor Chinn CVO
Chairman

17 June 2008
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Directors’ remuneration report
For the year ended 31 March 2007

Introduction

This report has been voluntarnly prepared and 1s in accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations
2002, which introduced new statutory requirements for the disclosure of directors’ remuneration 1n respect of penods
ending on or after 31 December 2002 for companies with a full isting on the London Stock Exchange The report also
meets the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty and describes how the Board
has applied the Pnnciples of Good Governance relating to directors’ remuneration As required by the Regulations, a
resolution to approve the report wiil be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the company at which the financial
statements will be approved

The Regulations require the auditors to report to the company’s members on the “auditable part” of the Directors’
Remuneration Report and to state whether in their opimion that part of the report has been properly prepared in
accordance with Companies Act 1985 (as amended by the Regulations}

Unaudited information

Remuneration committee

The committee consists of Steven Norns and Sir Trevor Chinn, under the chairmanship of John Hewett Its purpose 1s
to determine the remuneration, benefits and the terms and conditions of employment of the executive directors  No
director plays a part in any discussion about his own remuneration

Remuneration policy

Executive remuneration packages are prudently designed to attract, motivate and retain directors and senior
executives of the high calibre needed to maintain the company’s position as a market leader and to reward them for
enhancing value to shareholders The performance measurement of the execubive directors and the determination of
therr annual remuneration package 1s undertaken by the committee Within the mits set out by the Articles of
Association, the Board deterrmines the remuneration of the non-executive directors Details of the directors'
remuneration are given In the ‘Audited Information’ section, beginning on page 24

There are four main elements of the remuneration package for executive directors and senor management
« basic annual salary and benefits,

« annual bonus payments,

+ share option incentives, and

* pension arrangements

Basic salary

Salanes for the executive directors are reviewed annually, with the most recent review taking effect from July 2007 In
deciding appropnate levels, the committee considers the Group as a whole and salary levels of comparator
companies Executive directors’ contracts of service, which include details of remuneration, will be available for
inspection at the Annual General Meeting
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

Annual bonus payments

The remunerabion committee establishes the objectives that must be met for each financial year if a cash bonus Is to
be paid In setting approprate bonus parameters the committee refers to comparator companies as noted above The
commuttee believes that any incentive compensation awarded should be tied to the interests of the company’s
shareholders Incentive payments made for the year ended 31 March 2008 are given below

50% of the directors’ bonus scheme for the year ended 31 March 2008 was based on a three-tier scale, with 6 66% of
salary being payable If targets are met within 5% A further 6 66% 1s payable for meeting targets and a further 6 68%
Is payable on exceeding these targets by more than 5% In addition to this, the directors can receive an additional
10% of salary dependent upon international progress and a further discretionary amount of 10% of salary based upon
overall performance

Share options

Grants of share options are at the discretion of the Board  All grants are intended to promote a longer term
involvement In the well-being of the company and capital growth benefits for option holders Options are not routinely
granted on an annual basis but made on an individual basis to reflect performance, increased responsibilities and
promotions

The company operates three share option plans the approved plan, the unapproved plan and the EMI plan

Approved plan

All executive scheme ophions are granted at a price not less than the five-day average market price prevailing at the
date of grant The options are exercisable at the earlier of the third anniversary of the date of grant or such other date
as may be determined as at the date of grant by the grantor

Unapproved plan

Ophons granted prior to admissien to the Alternative Investment Market were granted at an option price deterrmined by
the Board which was equivalent to market value

EMI plan

Options granted under this scheme are granted at prices set by the Board and may be less than the market value
prevailing at the date of grant but may not be less than the nomnal value of an ordinary share The Board 1n each
individual case will determine the circumstances in which an employee can exercise thewr EMI option

Directors’ pension arrangements

Executive directors are eligible to be members of the company’s money purchase (defined contnbution) Group
personal pension scheme The company makes pension contnbutions of 15% of basic salary for executive directors
Their dependents are eligible for dependents’ pensions at the level of 25% of the member’'s earnings Life assurance
1s provided for each executive director at a maximum of four tmes basic salary
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

Service agreements

All non-executive directors have specific terms of engagement and their remuneration 1s determined by the Beoard
within the hmits set out In the Articles of Associalion and based upen independent surveys of fees paid to non-

executive directors of similar companies Non-executive directers cannot participate in any of the company's share
option schemes and are not eligible to join the company’s pension scheme

In the case of early termination of employment, the commitiee will adopt the objectives outlined in the Combined
Code

Payment in respect of Steven Norns' services 1s made to a company owned by him Payment in respect of John
Hewett's services 1s made to Smedwig Capital Limited

Performance graphs

The following graph illustrates the company’s Total Shareholder Return (TSR} perfoermance since 1 Apnl 2003 relative
to the FTSE AIM index and to the FTSE techMARK 100 index The FTSE AIM comparator Group was chosen as ITIS
Holdings plc 1s a member of that index, and the FTSE techMARK 100 index was chosen as it represents a broad
equity index, which the directors feel 1s comparable to the company The graph looks at the value, by 31 March 2008,
of £100 invested in ITIS Holdings plc on 1 Apnl 2003 compared with that of £100 invested in the FTSE AlM and
techMARK 100 indexes The other points are plotted at half-year and financial year ends

TSR Performance Graph

900
800
700
600 —— AM
500 | —"_—techMARK 100
400 —ar—|TI5 Holdings
300
200
100
0 « = mmm— = = — per = = B
5 8 % & & & 8 8% 3 &5 B :

23 ITIS HOLDINGS PLC




Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

Performance graphs {continued)

The following graph illustrates the company's TSR performance for the year ended 31 March 2008, the penod since
the last annual report and financial statements The graph looks at the value, by 31 March 2008, of £100 invested In
ITIS Holdings plc on 1 Apnl 2007 compared with that of £100 invested in the FTSE AIM and techMARK 100 indexes
The other point ts plotted at the half-year end

TSR Performance Graph
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It 1s the company’s pelicy that executive directors should have contracts with an indefinite term providing for a
maximum of six months’ notice The details of the directors’ contracts are summarised below

Date of contract Notice period

S A Marks 4 October 2000 6 months
J Burr 4 October 2000 6 months
A D Forrest 20 November 2002 6 months
G Gates 23 July 2007 6 months

Audited Information

Aggregate remuneration
The total amounts for directors’ remuneration and other benefits were as follows

2008 2007

£ £

Emoluments 1,087,117 705,835
Money purchase pension contnbutions 43,295 34,988
1,130,412 740,823
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

Directors’ emoluments

Gain on Money purchase
Fees/ exercise pension
basic Annual Benefits of share Total Total contnbutions
salary bonuses in kind oplions 2008 2007 2008 2007
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Executive
S A Marks 181,562 64,313 55,009 - 300,884 249,788 - -
J Burr 155,625 55,125 9,876 - 220,626 209,416 23,344 21,657
A D Forrest 96,228 34,086 13,755 198,000 342,069 134,131 14,434 13,331
G Gates (appointed 65,675 33,250 12,113 111,038 - 5,517 -
23 July 2007) -
i Non-executive
| SrT Chinn 62,500 - . - 62,500 62,500 - .
| S Noms 25,000 - - - 25,000 25,000 - -
J Hewett 25,000 - - - 25,000 25,000 - -

611,590 186,774 90,753 198,000 1,087,117 705,835 43,295 34,988

Directors’ share options
Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary
shares 1n the company granted to or held by the directors Details of options exercised duning this year are as follows

Gains on Gains on

Number of Exercise  Market price at exercise exercise
Director Scheme options price exercise date 2008 2007
A D Forrest ITIS Holdings PLC EMI scheme 400,000 7 5p 57p 198,000 -

The 400,000 share options exercised increased A Forrest's shareholding from 26,126 to 426,126 ordinary shares of
2p each

25 ITiIS HOLDINGS PLC




Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

Directors’ share options {continued)

Details of options for directors who served dunng the year are as follows

At beginning
of the year
Director or on At end of
appointment  Exercised Granted the year Exercise Earliest date of

Number Number Number Number price exercise Expiry date
S A Marks 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 7 5p 2 Dec 03/04/05' 1 Dec 2012
J Burr 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 7 5p 2 Dec 03/04/05' 1 Dec 2012
- - 29,220 29,220 76 9p 18 Jun 08/09/10* 17 Jun 17
- - 38,961 38,961 76 9p 18 Jun 08/09/10* 17 Jun 17"
- - 431,819 431,819 76 9p 18 Jun 08/09/10° 17 Jun 17
- - 500,000 500,000 41 25p 14 Jan 09/10/11° 13 Jan 18
AD Forrest 400,000 {400,000} - - 7 5p 2 Dec 03/04/05' 1 Dec 2012’
100,000 - - 100,000 247p 22 June 05/06/07° 21 June 2014’
- - 109,818 109,818 41 25p 14 Jan 09/10/11° 13 Jan 18’
- - 72,727 72,727 41 25p 14 Jan 09/10/11° 13 Jan 18~
- - 317,455 317,455 41 25p 14 Jan 09/10/11° 13 Jan 18
G A Gates 100,000 - - 100,000 7 5p 2 Dec 03/04/05' 1 Dec 2012°
129,011 - - 129,011 64 5p 7 Nov 07/08/09° 6 Nov 2016
44,776 - - 44,776 64 5p 7 Nov 07/08/09° 6 Nov 2016~
151,213 - - 151,213 64 5p 7 Nov 07/08/09° 6 Nov 2016

*Denotes share ophions 1ssued under the company’s EMI scheme

**Denotes share options 1ssued under the company's Approved scheme

' The number of options granted 1s divided into three equal tranches, for which the earliest dates of exercise are
2 December 2003, 2004 and 2005 respectively Under the terms of the option deed, these options may all be
exercised in certain circumstances on termination of employment

2The number of ophons granted 1s divided into three equal tranches, for which the earliest dates of exercise are
22 June 2005, 2006 and 2007 respectively Under the terms of the option deed, these cptions may all be exercised in
certain circumstances on termination of employment

*The number of options granted 1s divided into three equal tranches, for which the earliest dates of exercise are 7

November 2007, 2008 and 2009 respectively Under the terms of the option deed, these options may all be exercised
In certain circumstances on termination of employment
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

Directors’ share options {continued)

“The number of options granted 1s divided into three equal tranches, for which the earliest dates of exercise are

18 June 2008, 2009 and 2010 respectively Under the terms of the option deed, these options may all be exercised in
certain circumstances on termination of employment

*The number of options granted 1s divided nto three equal tranches, for which the earliest dates of exercise are 14
January 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively Under the terms of the option deed, these options may all be exercised in

certain circumstances on termination of employment

The market price of ordinary shares at 31 March 2008 was 37 5 pence and the range during the year was 33 pence to
80 pence

Unless otherwise indicated, the options have been 1ssued under the company's unapproved share option scheme

None of the share options 1ssued have performance conditions attached to them Other than these share option
schemes, the company has no long-term incentive plans

By order of the Board,

MrJ Hewett
Chairman - Remuneration Committee

17 June 2008
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Independent auditors’ report

We have audited the group financial statements of ITIS Holdings plc for the year ended 31 March 2008 which
comprise the consolidated iIncome statement, the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense, the
consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 29 These group
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein We have also audited the
information in the directors’ remuneration report that 1s descnbed as having been audited

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of ITIS Holdings plc for the year ended
31 March 2008

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the annual report, the directors’ remuneration report and the group
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union are set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities

Our responsibihty 1s to audit the group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and fair view, whether the group
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation and whether the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the
information given in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the group financial statements

In addition we report to you If, in our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we require for
our audit, or if iInformation specified by law regarding director's remuneration and other fransactions 1s not disclosed

The directors have also asked us to review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company's
compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006 Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authonity, and we report if It does not We are not required te consider whether the board's
statements on internal control cover all nsks and controls, or form an opinien on the effectiveness of the group's
corporate governance procedures or Its nsk and control procedures

We read the other information contained in the annual report as descnbed n the contents section and consider
whether it 1s consistent with the audited group financial statements The other information compnses only the
directors' report, the statement of the chairman and the chief executive and the unaudited part of the directors’
remuneration report We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or matenal inconsistencies with the group financial statements Our responsibiities do not extend to any further
information outside the annual report
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independent auditors’ report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of enidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the group financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited 1t also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and jJudgments made by the directors in the preparation of the
group financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s circumstances,
consistenily applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit o as to obtain all the information and explanations which we constdered
necessary (n order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group financial
statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited are free from matenal misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other iregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the group financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to
be audited

Opinion
In our opinion
« the group financial statements give a true and far view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, of the state of the group's affairs as at 31 March 2008 and of its profit for the year then

ended,

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Compares Act 1985 and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation,

+ the part of the directors' remuneration report descnbed as having been audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

¢ the infoermation given in the directors' report 1s consistent with the group financial statements

DQLQ.\“JL A (rﬁv\d'u. LAPp

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester, United Kingdom

17 June 2008
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2008

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating costs

Operating profit

Interest recervable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges

Profit before tax

Current tax on ordinary activities
Deferred tax (charge) credit

Total tax on profit on ordinary activities

Profit for the financial year from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Profit for the financial year from discontinued operations

Profit for the financial year

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing

operations (pence)

Basic and dsluted earnings per share from continuing and

discontinued operations (pence)

Notes

2,3

10

10

2008 2007
£ £
18,322,831 14,171,896
(6,342,440) (4,910,605)
11,980,391 9,261,291
(7,672,342) (5,902,548)
4,308,049 3,358,743
493,620 312,127
(8,986) (707)
4,792,683 3,670,163
(106,680) (5.737)
(1.486,544) 1,491,830
(1,593,224) 1,486,093
3,199,459 5,156,256
- 4,289,589
3,199,459 9,445,845
32 52
32 96

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated income statement

30 ITIS HOLDINGS PLC




Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
For the year ended 31 March 2008

2008 2007
£ £
Profit for the financial year 3,199,459 9,445 845
Currency translation difference 527 (1,649)
Total recognised income and expense for the financial year 3,199,986 9,444,196
Afttnibutable to
Equity holders of the parent 3,199,986 9,444,196

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated statermnent of total recognised income and expense
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Consolidated balance sheet
31 March 2008

Non-current assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax asset

Other receivables

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabihties
Trade and other payables

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities
Other payables

Total liabilities
Net assets

Equity

Called-up share capital
Share premium account
Retained earnings
Other reserve

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Total equity

Notes

12
13
14

15

15

16

17

19
20
20
20

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated balance sheet

Signed on behalf of the Board

WA\ VAN

S A Marks
Director
17 June 2008
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Dwéctor
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2008 2007
£ £
9,315,548 -
2,288,700 684,838
1,885,005 932,997
5286 1,491,830
552,854 98,337
14,047,393 3,208,002
6,322,318 4,690,805
1,964,522 11,571,102
8,286,840 16,261,907
22,334,233 19,469,909
(4,193,130)  (3,291,283)
4,093,710 12,970,624
(69,039) (61,396)
(4,262,169) (3,352,679)
18,072,064 16,117,230
5,230,270 5,230,270
- 38,070,740
12,413,527 (27,440,187)
428,267 256,407
18,072,064 16,117,230
18,072,064 16,117,230




Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2008

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities

Interest receved

Proceeds on sale of subsidiary

Costs of disposal

Net cash balances disposed of with subsidiary undertaking
Repayment of loans owed by subsidiary

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Acquisition of subsidiary

Net cash {used in) from investing activities

Financing activities
Dividends paid
Repayment of borrowings

Net cash used in financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Notes

23

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated cash flow statement
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2008 2007

£ £
3,874,611 4,790,792
493,620 312,127

- 3

- {164,484)

- (4.153)

- 2,199,997

136,627 17,749
(1,347,812)  (894,958)
(16,795)  (381,820)
(3.010,346) -
(3,744,706) 1,084,461
(1.417.012) -
(8,320,000) -
(9,737.,012) -
(9,607,107) 5,875,253
11,671,102 5,697,498
527 (1,649)
1,964,522 11,571,102




Notes to the financial statements

1 General information and principal accounting policies

The Group has previously prepared its financial statements under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (‘UK
GAAP") Fallowing a revision in the AIM Rules, the Group 15 required to prepare its 2008 consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financtal Reporting Standards (IFRS)

Accordingly these financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out below Adoption of
these policies has resulted in disclosure and presentational changes only and has not made necessary the
restatement of any balances Consequently no reconciiations between UK GAAP and IFRS balances have been
presented

The rules for the first ime adoption of IFRS are set outn IFRS 1 ‘First time adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards’ IFRS 1 requires that IFRS be applied retrospectively unless a specific exemption s applied In
preparing this financial informataon the Group has adopted the following exemptions

+ toapply IFRS 2 ‘Share based payment' to those share options granted after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested by 1 Apnl 2006, and

» to deem cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations to be zero as at the opening IFRS balance
sheet date (1 April 2006}

The cash flow differences between UK GAAP and IFRS are either movements within a classification or presentational
only There 1s no impact on the final cash position nor the movement duning the penods presented

General information

ITIS Holdings plc I1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Acts 1948 to 1980 The
address of the registered office 1s given on page 15 The nature of the group’s operations and its principal actwvities
are set out on page 8 of the directors’ report

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that i1s the currency of the primary economic
environment tn which the group operates Foreign operations are included in accordance with the polictes set outin
the foreign currency accounting policy below

At the date of the authonsation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations that are
expected to impact on the Group but which have not been applied in these financial statements, were in 1ssue but not
yet effective

With the exception of changes in disclosure, the directors anticipate that the adophion of these Standards and

Interpretations in future penods will have no matenal impact on the financial statements of the Group The directors
anticipate that the Group will adopt these standards and interpretations on therr effecuve dates
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1 General information and principal accounting policies (continued)
General information (continued)

e |IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements, revised version 1ssued in September 2007, effective for annual
pernods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

+ |AS 23 Borrowing costs, revised version 1ssued in March 2007, effective for annual penods beginning on or after
1 January 2009

s |IFRS 8 Operating segments, 1ssued in November 2006, effective for penods beginning on or after 1 January
2009

The impact of all other standards and interpretations not yet adopted 1s not expected to be matenal

The principal accounting policies are summarnised below The Group's accounting policies have been applied
consistently throughout the current and prior year

a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS The financial statements have been prepared
on the histonical cost basis

b} Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of ITIS Holdings plc and its subsidiary
undertakings made up to 31 March each year The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control passed Acquisitions are accounted for under the acquisiion method

¢) Revenue recognition

Group revenue compnises the value of sales (excluding VAT and trade discounts) of goods and services in the normal
course of business Where revenue 1s earned under contractual arrangements, this 1s recegnised in line with
contractual performance Where the nght to receive consideration i1s dependent upon the fulfilment of milestones or
other customer-acceptance events, revenue I1s recogrised only when the related conditions have been satisfied
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information and principal accounting policies {continued)

d} Research and development costs

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development expendifure

Expenditure on research activities 1s recognised as an expense In the penod in which it is incurred

An internally-generated intangible asset ansing from the group’s development 1s recognised only if all of the following
conditions are met

+ an asset s created that can be 1dentified {such as software and new processes),

+ 1t 18 probable that the asset will generate future economic benefits, and

+ the development cost of the asset can be measured directly

Internally-generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful ives Where no
internally-generated ntangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure i1s recognised as an expense In the
penod in which it 1s incurred

e) Gooawill

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisiion Goodwill 1s inibally recogrised
as an asset at cost and 1s subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment iosses Goodwill which 1s
recogrused as an asset 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually Any impairment is recognised immediately in
profit or loss and 1s not subsequently reversed

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently when there 1s an indicaticn that the urit may be impaired If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1s less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss i1s
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
15 not reversed in a subsequent period
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Notes to the financial statements

f) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at discounted cost, net of amortisation and any provision for impairment Intangible
assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives, using the straight ine method, on the following bases

Customer relationships 10% to 20% |
Intellectual property 20% |
Licences 33% |
Other intangibles 8% to 33%

g) Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any recegnised impairment loss Depreciation 1s
charged so as to wnite off the cost of assets — with the exception of land, which 1s not depreciated — over their
estimated useful fives, using the straight ine method, on the following bases

Buildings 4% |
Fixtures 20% to 33% !
Motor vehicles 33% ‘
Equipment 25% to 33%

h) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease The corresponding hability to
the tessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligahon Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the hability Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight hine basis over the
term of the relevant lease

1} Taxaton
UK corporation tax and foreign tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all trming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance

sheet date where transactions or events that result in an abhgation to pay more tax in the future or a nght to pay less

tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date Timing differences are differences between the Group’s

taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial statements A net deferred tax asset 1s regarded as

recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more |
likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of underlying iming differences

can be deducted
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General infformation and principal accounting policies (continued)

1) Taxahon (continued)

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods in which the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis

}) Income statement

Operating profit 1s stated after charging normal operating expenses, goodwill impairment and amortisation of acquired
intangible assets but before investment income and finance costs

k) Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contnbuticn pension scheme and the pension costs charged against profits represent
the amount of contributions payable to the scheme in the year Differences between contributions payable and
contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet

{} Long-term contracts

Where the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date  This 1s normally measured by the proportion
represented by contract costs incurred for work performed to date of total estimated contract costs Varnations in
contract work are included to the extent that they have been agreed with the customer

Where the outcome of a centract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue 1s recognised to the extent of
contract costs incurred where 1t 1s probable that they will be recoverable Contract costs are recognised as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred

When it 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss 1s recogrised
immediately as an expense In the iIncome statement

m) Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction Monetary

assets and llabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of
exchange prevailing at that date

The results of overseas cperations are translated at the average rates of exchange dunng the period and their
balance sheets as at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date Exchange differences ansing on translation of the
opening net assets and results of overseas operations are reported in the statement of total recogrised gains and
losses All other exchange differences are included in the income statement

n) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial iabiliftes are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet when the group becomes a party
to the contractual provistons of the instrument Trade receivables, loans, and other recevables that have fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted In an active market are classified as loans and receivables Loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment Interest income
15 recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immatenal
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information and principal accounting policies {(continued)

o) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Financial assets are impaired
where there 1s objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the asset have been reduced

For certain categones of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be imparred
indwidually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of recevables could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic condittons that correlate with default on receivables

The carrying amount of the financial asset Is reduced by the imparment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account When
a trade recewable 1s considered uncollectible, 1t 1s wrnitten off against the allowance account Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously wntten off are credited against the allowance account Changes in the carrying amount of the
aliowance account are recognised In the income statement

p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly hquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes
in value

q) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity If
the Group nenther transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated hability for amounts 1t
may have to pay If the Group retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds recewved

r)  Financial habihties and equity

Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into

39 ITIS HOLDINGS PLC




Notes to the financial statements

1 General information and principal accounting policies {continued)

s) Equity instruments

An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its labilities Equity instruments 1ssued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct Issue costs

1) Financial habilities

Financial habiities, including borrowings, are inthally measured at fair value, net of transaction costs Other financial
habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis The effectve interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial labihty and of allocating interest expense over the relevant pertod The effective interest rate 1s the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected hfe of the financial hability, or, where
appropnate, a shorter penod

u} Derecogmition of financial iabilities
The Group derecognises financial habilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they expire

v) Share-based payment
The group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2, Share-based payment In accordance with the transibonal

provisions, IFRS 2 has been appled to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as
of 1 Apnl 2006

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees Equity-settled share-based payments
are measured at fair value {excluding the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments 1s expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting penod, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of
non market-based vesting condittons

Farr value 1s measured by use of the Black-Scholes pricing model The expected ife used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restnctions, and
behavioural considerations

w) Cntical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, which are descnbed above, management has made the
following judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recogmised in the financial statements
(apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below)

w (1}  Revenue and profit recogrution
Amounts of revenue and profit recognised under contracts for the provision of traffic information
services are based on management's assessment of the stage of completion or delivery of the
relevant services
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information and principal accounting policies {(continued)
x) Key sources of estimation uncertamnty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating umits to which goodwill has been allocated The value in use calculation requires
the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to anse from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value

Useful econormuc fives of intangibles

The brand has been valued on a relief from royalty approach There 1s considered to be strength in
the brand arising from Trafficlink’s leadership in the UK market and its established name, and
therefore a useful economic life of 10 years has been used

A cost approach was taken to value the propretary software acquired and, in ine with Group policies
on propnetary software, this will be amortised over three years

Customer relationships

This was valued using a multi-penod excess eamings methodology Depending upon length of
current contracts and strength of relationship with the customer, these are considered to have useful
economic lives of between five and ten years with an attrition factor applied to years outside of the
current contracted terms to recognise the nsk of non-renewal

x (1)
x (1)
Brand name
Proprietary software
2 Revenue

An analysis of the group’s revenue 15 as follows

Yearended Year ended

2008 2007
£ £
Continuing operations
Revenue from contracts 18,322,831 14,171,886
Investment income 493,620 312,127
Discontinued operations
Revenue (see note 9} - 4,616,585
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Notes to the financial statements

3 Segmental analysis
The directors are of the opinion that the Group operates in a single segment, that of the prowision of telematic products and senices
Hence all turover, profits and net assets relate to this class of business

An analysis of revenue and results by geographical region 1s presented below

Urnuted Mainland

Kingdom Europe USA Israel Restof World Elminations Consolidated
2008 £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Revenue
Extenat sales 17,254,785 817,199 140,923 84,221 28,703 - 18,322,831
Inter-segment sales 1,112,397 - y 1,417,476 - (2.529.873) -
Total revenue 18,367,182 817,199 140,923 1,408,697 28,703 (2,529,873) 18,322,831

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevaling market prices

United Mainland
Kingdom Europe USA Israel Restof world Elminations Consohdated
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Result
Segment result 5,362,641 463,592 (13,752)  (1,510,694) 6.262 - 4,308,049
Investment revenues 493,620
Finance costs (8.986)
Profit before tax 4,792,683
Tax (1,593,224}
Profit after tax 3,199,459
United
Kingdom Israel Consolidated

2008 £ £ £
Other information
Capital additions 1,314,956 49,651 1,364,607
Depreciaticn and amortisation 893,002 34,091 927,093
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 22,010,268 323,965
Consolidated total assets 22,334,233
Liabilities
Segment liabihties {3,779.677) {482,492)
Consolidated total habilities (4,262,169)

———

The Group holds assets only in the United Kingdom and Israel Whilst the Group trades i other areas of the world, it provides the services
for those other countries from the United Kingdom
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Notes to the financial statements

3 Segmental analysis {(continued)

United Mainland Rest of
Kingdom Europe USA Israel World Eliminations  Consolidated
2007 £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Revenue
Extemal sales 13,535,624 310,081 67,545 2,820 256,826 - 14,171,896
Inter-segment sales 758,872 - - 1,110,570 . {1,869,442) .
Total revenue 14,294,496 310,081 67,545 1,113,390 255,826 (1,869,442) 14,171,896
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevalling market prices
United Mainland Rest of
Kingdom Europe USA Israel world Eliminations Consolidated
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Result
Segment result 4,678,282 (12460)  (280,658)  (1,301,034) 274,613 - 3.358.743
Investment revenues 312,127
Finance costs (707)
Profit before tax 3,670,163
Tax 1,486,093
Profit after tax 5,156,256
Profit from discontinued
operations 4,289,589
Profit after tax and
discontinued operations 9,445,845
United
Kingdom Israel  Consclidated

2007 £ £ £
Other information
Capital addiions 1,121,914 95,665 1,217,579
Depreciation and amortisation 744,610 95,413 840,023
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 19,247,359 222,550
Consolidated total assets 19,469,909
Liabilities
Segment habilibes (3,038,772} (313,907)
Consolidated tota! liabihties (3.352,679)

The Greup holds assets only in the Umited Kingdom and Israel Whilst the Group trades in other areas of the world, it prowides the services
for those other countnes from the United Kingdom
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Notes to the financial statements

4 Particulars of employees
The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) was

Restated

2008 2007

Number Number

Operations 115 71
Sales and distribution - 4
Administration 16 18
131 93

2007 employee numbers did not include employees based in Israel These employees, totalling 24 in 2008 and 23 1n
2007, have now been included in the above table

On 6 December 2007 the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Traffichnk Limited Of the average
number of employees in 2008, 53 are Traffichnk employees and therr aggregate remuneration was £1,066,452

On 26 March 2007, the Group disposed of its interest in the ordinary share capital of NavTrak Limited Of the average
number of employees in 2007, 21 were NavTrak employees and their aggregate remuneration was £619,455

Excluding Trafficlink and NavTrak employees, the average number of employees rose in the year from 72 to 78

The aggregate remuneration of employees (including executive directors) compnsed

Restated
2008 2007

£ £

Wages and salanes 4,124,408 3,405,799
Social secunty costs 412,227 333,125
Share-based payments charge (see note 11) 171,860 82,815
Penston costs (see note 24) 192,264 207,945

4,900,759 4,029,684

5 Interest receivable and similar iIncome

2008 2007

£ £

Interest receivable on bank deposits 493,620 312,127
6 Interest payable and similar charges

2008 2007

£ £

Interest payable and similar charges 8,986 707
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Notes to the financial statements

7 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging (crediting)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

(Peofit)loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Rentals under operating leases

- other operating leases

- plant and machmnery

Research and development costs

Net foreign exchange losses

Staff costs (see note 4)

Auditors’ remuneration
The analysis of auditors’ remuneration 1s as follows

Fees payable to the company’s auditors for the audit of the
company’s annual accounts

Fees payable to the company’s auditors and their associates for
other services to the group

- The audit of the company’s subsidiaries pursuant te legislation

Total audit fees

Other services pursuant to legislation

- tax services
- financial due diigence
- other services

Total non-audit fees

45 ITIS HOLDINGS PLC

2008 2007
£ £
533,955 534,428
393,138 305,595
(22,370) 998
207,729 124,404
12,340 17,948
1,795,392 1,826,817
16,858 39,667
4,900,759 4,029,684
2008 2007
£ £
20,000 20,000
45,000 32,000
65,000 52,000
30,000 23,000
105,000 -
22,000 21,000
157,000 44,000
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8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities
The tax (charge)/credit comprises

Current tax
Adjustment in respect of pnor years

Total current tax

Deferred tax
{Charge)/credit in respect of current year
Adjustment in respect of prior years

Total deferred tax

(Charge)/credit In respect of current year

The tax (charge)/credit all relates to continuing operations

2008 2007
£ £
(106,680) (5,737)
(106,680) (5.737)
(1,509,287) 1,491,830
22,743 ;
(1,486,544) 1,491,830
(1,593,224) 1,486,003

Corporation tax is calculated at 30% (2007 30%;) of the estmated assessable profit for the year Taxation for other

junsdictions Is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective junsdictions

The charge for the year can be reconciled 1o the profit per the income statement as follows

Profit before tax
-Continuing operations
-Discontinued operations

Profit before tax

Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2007 30%)
Expenses not deductible (iIncome not taxable) for tax purposes
Depreciation {less than)/ in excess of capital allowances
Decrease in tax losses

Deferred tax asset recogrised

Adjustment in respect of prior years — current tax

Adjustment in respect of pnor years — deferred tax

Current year deferred tax movement

Employees share scheme acquisition rehef

Group tax charge (credit) for the year

2008 2007

£ £
4,792,683 7,727,086
- 232,666
4,792,683 7,959,752
1,437,805 2,387,925
61,025  (1,142,384)
(17.099) 64,615
(1,412,048) (1,310,156)
- (1,491,830)

106,680 5,737
(22,743) -
1,500,287 -
(69,683) -
1,593,224  (1,486,093)

A deferred tax asset amounting to £6,009,432 (2007 - £2,730,229) in respect of ITIS UK Limsted, Traffichnk Limited
and ITIS Holdings plc has not been recogmsed as, in the opimon of the directors, 1t cannot be regarded as more likely
than not that there will be suitable taxable profits ansing in those companies from which the underlying timing

differences can be deducted
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8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities {continued)

Deferred tax asset

£
At 1 Apnl 2006 -
Credit ansing on recognition of deferred tax asset 1,491,830
At 1 Apnl 2007 1,491,830
Adjustment in respect of pnor years 22,743
Charge to income due to utiisation of deferred tax asset (1,509,287)
At 31 March 2008 5,286

9 Discontinued operations

On 26 March 2007 the group sold its 100% interest in the ordinary share capital of NavTrak Limited, The profit of

NavTrak Limited up to the date of disposal was £232,666

The results of the discontinued cperations, which have been included in the consolidated income statement, were as

follows

Year Year

ended ended

31 March 31 March

2008 2007

£ £

Revenue - 4,616,585
Expenses - (4,383,919)
Profit before tax - 232,666
Attnbutable tax expense - -
Net profit atinbutable to discontinued operations - 232,666
Gain on disposal - 4,056,923
Profit from discontinued operations - 4,289,589

Duning the year, NavTrak Limited utiised £nil (2007 £260,169) of the group’s net operating cash flows
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10 Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share

The calculations of earnings per share are based on the following profits and number of shares

Profit for the financial year

Profit for the financial year from continuing operations

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic eamings per
share
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares - Share options*

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations
{pence}

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations (pence)

2008 2007

£ £

3,199,459 9,445,845
3,199,459 5,156,256
98,620,384 98,620,384
1,672,916 -
100,293,300 98,620,384
32 96

32 52

* The number of share options used I1s the excess of options In Issue at 31 March 2008, over the number of shares

held in the ITIS Holdings plc EBT
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11 Share based payments

Equity settled share option scheme

The company has share option schemes for all employees of the Group In the Company’s Approved Share Opticn
Scheme and the Company’'s EMI Option Scheme, options are exercisable at a pnce equal to the average closing
market pnce of the Campany's shares on the five days before the date of grant In the case of the Company’s
Unapproved Share Option Scheme the price i1s at the discretion of the Board The vesting period 1s three years If the
options remain unexercised after a penod of ten years from the date of grant the options expire Options are forfeited
if the employee leaves the group before the options vest

Details of the share options outstanding dunng the year are as follows

Year ended 31 March 2008 Year ended 31 March 2007
Weighted Weighted
average exercise average exercise
Number of share price  Number of share pnce
options £ options £
Outstanding at beginning of year 4,469,008 009 4,373,015 009
Granted dunng the year 1,990,000 050 325,000 065
Forfested dunng the year 3,335 025 26,669 025
Exercised dunng the year 807,337 008 202,338 008
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,648,336 027 4,469,008 013
Exercisable at the end of the year 3,441,669 011 3,853,669 008

The weighted average share price for share options exercised durning the year was £0 08 The options outstanding at
31 March 2008 had a werghted average exercise price of £0 27 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of
6 83 years In the year ended 31 March 2008, 500,000 options were granted on 18 June 2007, 1,000,000 were
granted on 14 January 2008 and 490,000 options were granted on 4 February 2008 The aggregate of the estimated
fair value of the options granted on those dates 1s £392,700 In the year ended 31 March 2007, options were granted
on 23 March 2007 The aggregate of the estimated fair value of the options granted on that date 1s £93,300

The inputs into the Black-Scholes pricing model are as follows

2008 2007
Weighted average share price 49p 67p
Weighted average exercise pnce 50p 64 5p
Expected volatility 30% 31%
Expected life 6 5 years 5 years
Risk-free rate 467% 497%

Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatiity of the group’s share pnice from the date of the
IPO to the date of grant The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best
estimate, for the effect of exercise restnctions and behavioural considerations The Group recognised total expenses
of £171,860 and £82,815 related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions n 2008 and 2007 respectively
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12 Goodwill

£
Cost and net book value
At 1 Apnl 2006, 31 March 2007 and 1 Apnl 2007 -
Recognised on acquisition of a subsidiary {see note 27) 9,315,548
At 31 March 2008 9,315,548

Goodwill acquired 1n a business combination 1s allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (CGUs} that are
expected to benefit from that business combination The groups’ goodwill relates entirely to one CGU, being
Trafficlink Limited

The Group tests goodwll annually for tmpairment, or more frequentty if there are indications that goodwill might be
impaired

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs during the period Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the CGUs The growth rates are based on
industry growth forecasts Changes in selling pnces and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes In the market

The Group prepares cash flow ferecasts denved from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for
the next three years and extrapolates cash flows for the following five years based on an estimated growth rate of 3%

per cent This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows 1s 11%
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13 Other intangible assets

Cost
At 1 April 2006

Addittons

At 1 Aprl 2007
Additions
Acquired with subsidiary

At 31 March 2008

Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2006

Charge for the year

At 1 Apnl 2007
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2008

Net book value
At 31 March 2008

At 31 March 2007

Customer  Intellectual Other

relationships Property Licences intangibles Total
£ £ £ £ £

- 989,740 - - 989,740

- 147,621 225,000 - 372,621

- 1,137,361 225,000 - 1,362,361

- - - 16,795 16,795
1,565,039 - - 415,166 1,980,205
1,565,039 1,137,361 225,000 431,961 3,359,361
- 371,928 - - 371,928

- 230,595 75,000 - 305,595

- 602,523 75,000 - 677,523

52,168 230,595 75,000 35,375 393,138
52,168 833,118 150,000 35,375 1,070,661
1,512,871 304,243 75,000 396,586 2,288,700
- 534,838 150,000 - 684,838

Intellectual property relates to the patents held by the Group in respect of its developed technology
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14 Property, plant and equipment

Computer
Land and Fixtures and Motor and office
builldings fittings vehicles equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2006 - 270,427 380,341 1,547,665 2,198,433
Additions - 13,821 441,112 440,025 894,958
Disposals - (79,567} {(85,496) (293,929) {458,992)
Disposal of subsidiary - {77,856} (129,045} (42,529) (249,430)
At 1 Apnl 2007 - 126,825 606,912 1,651,232 2,384,969
Additicns 441,861 13,608 235,802 656,541 1,347,812
Acquisition of subsidiary - 80,969 - 171,439 252,408
Disposals - (500) (219,270) (115) (219,885)
At 31 March 2008 441,861 220,902 623,444 2,479,097 3,765,304
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2006 - 219,405 201,523 1,117,759 1,538,687
Charge for the year - 13,677 167,679 353,072 534,428
Disposals - (79,157} (70,577) {292,507) (442 241)
Disposal of subsidhary - (77.,856) (67,870) {33,176) {178,902)
At 1 Apnl 2007 - 76,069 230,755 1,145,148 1,451,972
Charge for the year 7.364 29,417 157,229 339,945 533,955
Disposals - (346) (105,282) - (105,628)
At 31 March 2008 7,364 105,140 282,702 1,485,003 1,880,299
Net book value
At 31 March 2008 434,497 115,762 340,742 994,004 1,885,005
At 31 March 2007 - 50,756 376,157 506,084 932,997
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15 Trade and other receivables

Amounts falling due after more than one year

2008 2007

£ £

Cash in escrow 350,000 -
Trade and other receivables 202,854 98,337
552,854 98,337

Amounts falling due within one year

2008 2007

£ £

Trade and other receivables 2,262,476 1,575,537
Allowance for doubtful debts (33,555) (7,080)
Net trade and other recevables 2,228,921 1,568,457
VAT 24,139 -
Other debtors 57,576 183,530
Prepayments 4,011,682 2,938,818

6,322,318 4,680,805

The average credit penod taken on sales of goods I1s 44 days (2007 40 days) No interest 1s charged on the
receivables The Group bases its provision policy on past default expenence

Of the trade receivables balance at the end of the year, £1,315,573 (2007 £905,650)1s due from three of the Group’s
largest customers The Group monitors the credit quality of these customers and any changes are refiected in the
carrying value of the related trade receivable There are no other customers who individually represent more than 5
per cent of the total balance of trade receivables

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of £1,215,445 (2007 £588,510)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided as there has not been a significant
change In credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances The average age of these receivables 1s 92 days (2007 98 days)

Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables

2008 2007

£ £

60-90 days 686,016 284,177
80-120 days 93,222 191,166
Greater than 120 days 436,207 113,167
Total 1,215,445 588,510
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at the beginning of the pencd

Arising on acquisition

Balance at the end of the penod

Ageing of imparred trade recesvables

120+ days

16 Trade and other payables

Trade creditors

VAT

Other taxation and social secunty
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income
Deferred tax creditor

2008 2007

£ £

7,080 7,080
26,475 -
33,555 7,080
2008 2007

£ £

33,555 7,080
2008 2007

£ £

790,900 867,208
323,748 183,918
181,171 80,577
23,405 14,995
2,322,443 2,144,585
551,463 -
4,193,130 3,291,283

Trade creditors and accruals principally compnse amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The
average credit period taken for trade purchases 1s 29 days (2007 19 days) For most suppliers no interest 1s charged

on the trade payables for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice Thereafter, interest 1s charged on the

outstanding balances at various interest rates

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates tc therr fair value The deferred tax

creditor anses In relation to the intangible assets acquired in the year (see note 27}

17 Trade and other payables: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Accruals and deferred income
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18 Financial instruments
The Group does not use complex denvative financial instruments The Group does not have any borrowings and the
exposure to fluctuations in the Group's results due to interest rate movements is therefore not significant

Capital nsk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entiies in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while
maximising the return to stakeholders The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent, compnising 1ssued capital, reserves and retained earnings as
disclosed In notes 19 to 21 Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group attnbutable to equity holders of the
parent

Externally imposed capifal requirement
The Group 1s not subject to externally imposed capital requirements

Financral nsk management objectives

The Group’s activities expose it pnmanly to the financial nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates There
has been no change in the year to the Group's exposure to market nsks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the nsk

Foreign currency risk management
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies Hence, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations anse

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary habiliies at the
reporiing date are as follows

2008 2007
£ £
Euro 933,900 572,826
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18 Financial instruments {continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group 1s mainly exposed to the Euro currency

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the Stering against the relevant
foreign currencies 10% 1s the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency nsk internally to key management
personne! and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the period end for a 10% change in foresgn currency rates A positive number below indicates an
increase In profit and other equity where the Sterling strengthens 10% against the relevant currency For a 10%
weakening of the Sterling against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
and cther equity, and the balances below would be negative

Currency impact

2008 2007
£ £
Euro 93,390 57,283

Credit nsk

Credst nsk refers to the nsk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collateral where appropnate, as a means of mitigating the nsk of financial loss from defaults The Group uses publicly
availlable financial informaton and its own trading records to rate its major customers

The Group does not have any significant credit nsk exposure to any group of counterparties having similar
charactenistics

Liquidity nsk management

Ultimate responsibility for iguidity nsk management rests with the board of directors, which has built an appropnate
hquidity nsk management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
hquidity management requirements The Group manages hquidity nsk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
faciibies and reserve borrewing facilities by continucusly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and habibies Included in note 29 1s a descniption of additional undrawn facilibes
that the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity nsk
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19 Called-up share capital

2008 2007
£ £

Authorised share capital
339,106,585 ordinary shares of 2p each 6,782,132 6,782,132
32,178,683 deferred shares of 10p each 3,217,868 3,217,868

10,000,00¢ 10,000,000

2008 2007
£ £
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
100,620,099 ordinary shares of 2p each (2007 100,620,099 ordinary shares of 2p
each} 2,012,402 2,012,402
32,178,683 deferred shares of 10p each 3,217,868 3,217,868

5,230,270 5,230,270

The authonsed share capital of the company i1s divided into ordinary shares of 2p each and deferred shares of 10p
each The holders of the deferred shares are not entitied to receive notice or attend any general meeting of the
company and ne dividends will be made in respect of such deferred shares On a return of capital on hquidation or
otherwise, no assets of the company available for distnbution among the members will be applied in making payments
to the holders of the deferred shares (unless distnbutions totalling £1,000,000,000 have been made to the holders of
the ordinary shares) No resolution proposed or passed by members of the company shall affect the class nghts of the
holders of the deferred shares The company has the nght to purchase the deferred shares for 1p in aggregate
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19 Called-up share capital (continued)

Share options

s
The company had the following ordinary share options in 1ssue at 31 March 2008

Ordinary 2p shares Earhest Latest exercise
Date of 1ssue Number  Exercise price exercise date date
02 December 2002 1,433,335 7 5p 02 Dec 03/04/05' 01 Dec 2012 *
02 December 2002 1,500,000 7 5p 02 Dec 03/04/05' 01 Dec 2012 **
22 June 2004 120,001 247p 22 June 05/06/07° 21 June 2014 *
23 March 2006 280,000 247p 23 March 06/07/08° 22 March 2016 **
7 November 2006 129,011 64 5p 07 Nov 07/08/09" 06 Nov 2016 *
7 November 2006 195,989 64 5p 07 Nov 07/08/09* 06 Nov 2016  **
18 June 2007 29,220 76 9p 18 Jun 08/09/10° 17 Jun 2017  ~
18 June 2007 38,961 76 9p 18 Jun 08/09/10° 17 Jun 2017 ***
18 June 2007 431,819 76 9p 18 Jun 08/09/10° 17 Jun 2017 **
14 January 2008 109,818 41 25p 14 Jan 09/10/11° 13Jan 2018 *
14 January 2008 72,727 41 25p 14 Jan 09/10/11° 13 Jan 2018 ***
14 January 2008 817,455 41 25p 14 Jan 09/10/11° 13 Jan 2018 **
04 February 2008 490,000 41p 04 Feb 09/10/117 03 Feb2018 *

5,648,336

All options were granted at an exercise price equal to or above market value at the date of grant

Denotes share options 1ssued under the Company's EMI Share Option Scheme
Denotes share options issued under the Company's Unapproved Share Option Scheme
Denotes share options issued under the Company's Approved Share Option Scheme

' The number of options granted I1s divided into three equal blocks for which the earliest dates of exercise are
2 December 2002, 2003 and 2004 respectively Under the terms of the option deed, these options may all be

exercised In certain circumstances on termination of employment

2The number of options granted 1s divided into three equal blocks for which the earliest dates of exercise are 22 June
20085, 2006 and 2007 respectively Under the terms of the option deed, these options may all be exercised in certain
circumstances on termination of employment

*The number of options granted 1s divided into three equal blocks for which the earliest dates of exercise are 23

March 2006, 2007 and 2008 respectively Under the terms of the option deed, these options may all be exercised in
certain circumstances on termination of employment
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19 Called-up share capital (continued)

Share options (continued)

*The number of options granted I1s divided into three equal blocks for which the earliest dates of exercise are 7
November 2007, 2C08 and 2009 respectively Under the terms of the option deed, these options may all be
exercised in certain circumstances on termination of employment

®The number of options granted 1s divided into three equal blocks for which the earliest dates of exercise are 18 June
2008, 2009 and 2010 respectively Under the terms of the option deed, these options may all be exercised in certain
circumstances on termination of employment

® The number of options granted Is divided into three equal blocks for which the earliest dates of exercise are 14
January 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively Under the terms of the option deed, these options may all be exercised 1n
certain circumstances on termination of employment

"The number of options granted s divided into three equal blocks for which the earliest dates of exercise are 4

February 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively Under the terms of the option deed, these options may all be exercised
in certain circumstances on termination of employment
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20 Reserves
Share

Qther premium Profit and
reserve account loss account
Group £ £ £
At 1 Apnl 2006 178,025 38,070,740 (36,888,816)
Currency translation dfferences - - (1,649)
IFRS 2 share option charge 82,815 - -
Reserve transfer (4,433) - 4,433
Retained profit for the year - - 9,445,845
At 31 March 2007 256,407 38,070,740 (27,440,187)
Currency translation differences - - 527
IFRS 2 share option charge 171,860 - -
Cancellation of share premium - (38,070,740) 38,070,740
Retained profit for the year - - 3,199,459
Dividends paid {note 28} - - (1,417,012)
At 31 March 2008 428,267 - 12,413,527

Own shares held

Shares of the company are held under trust by Mourant ECS Trustees (Jersey) Limited for the ITIS Holdings plc
Employee Benefit Trust The trust holds ITIS Holdings plc shares and satisfies awards made to employees and
directors At 31 March 2008, 3,975,420 (2007 - 4,782,757) ordinary shares were held by the trust, all of which ordinary
shares are allocated to employees and directors to satisfy awards made to them under company share schemes The
market value of these shares at 31 March 2008 was £1,490,783 (2007 - £2,860,685)

The profit and loss account in both years 1s stated after deducting £132,724 wnitten off to reserves on the 1ssue of
shares to the Employee Benefit Trust in the year ended 31 March 2001 and £435,443 relating to the purchase of
treasury shares in the year ended 31 March 2004

Share premium

High Court approval was received on 23 January 2008 of the resolution passed at the Company’s extraordinary
general meeting on 22 November 2007 for the elmination of an accumulated deficit on its profit and loss account of
£33,520,972 by the cancellation of the whole of the amount standing to the credit of its share premium account
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21 Statement of changes In equity

Profit for the financial year

Other recogmsed gains and losses relating to the year
IFRS 2 share option charge

Diwvidends paid

Net addition to Group shareholders’ funds
Opening shareholders’ funds

Closing shareholders’ funds

22 Leases

Minimum lease payments under operating leases
recognised as an expense in the year

2008 2007

£ £

3,199,459 9,445,845
527 (1,649)
171,860 82,815
(1,417,012) -
1,954,834 9,527,011
16,117,230 6,590,219
18,072,064 16,117,230
2008 2007

£ £

220,069 142,352

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After five years

2008 2007

£ £

362,976 136,744
963,461 364,818
320,250 -
1,646,687 501,562

Operating lease payments represent rentals by the Group for certain of its office properties Leases are negotiated for
an average term of 8 years and rentals are fixed for an average of 4 years with an option to extend for a further 4

years at the then prevailling market rate
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23 Cash flow information

Reconcihiation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

Profit for the year
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Interest iIncome
Share-based payment expense
Finance costs
Income tax expense
Deferred tax charge (credit)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations
Gain on dispesal of property, plant and equipment
Decrease In provisions

Operating cash flows before movements in working captal

Decrease in Inventones
Increase in receivables
{Decrease)ncrease in payables

Cash generated by operations

Interest paid
Foreign tax paid
Research and development tax credit

Net cash from operating activities

24 Retirement benefits

2008 2007
£ £
3,199,459 9,445,845
533,955 534,428
393,138 305,595
(493,620)  (312,127)
171,860 82,815
8,986 707
106,680 5,737
1,486,544  (1,491,830)
- (4,056,923)

(22,370) (998)

- (54,459)
5,384,632 4,458,790
- 55,190

(833,643)  (1,228,628)
(672,267) 1,500,496
3,878,722 4,785,848

(8,986) (707)

- (18,205)

4,875 23,856
3,874,611 4,790,792

The Group provides pension arrangements to the majonty of full-tme employees through a defined contribution

scheme The pension charge for the year was £192,264 (2007 - £207,945)

25 Related party transactions
Remuneralion of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors, who are also deemed to be the key management personnel of the Group, 1s set out

in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 24 to 27
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26 Contingent hability

On 30 November 2006 a claim was filed in the Tel Aviv District Court by an Israell Company, Decell Technologies Ltd,
and a US Corporation, Decell Inc , against six defendants including ITIS Traffic Service Ltd (*ITSL"), a wholly owned
substdiary of the Group The plaintiffs allege an infringement of an Israel patent for which they are claiming
NIS12,000,000 (approximately £1 5 milkon) Decell filed an application for intenm relief, which has been rejected by
the court

Based on advice from legal counsel the directors believe ITSL has strong defences to the claims asserted in these
proceedings and intend to defend wigerously such claims The directors believe, having taken advice from legal
counsel, it 1s unlikely that a hability will anse from this itigatton and as a result no contingency in respect of the claim
has been provided for in the company accounts

Dunng the year, an application for secunty of costs was made by ITSL, and Decell deposited a bank guarantee in the
amount of US$200,000 into court 1TSL will seek to recover all costs incurred in relation to the proceedings However,
the directors note there 1s a risk that some or all of those costs may nct ulimately be recovered During the year
ended 31 March 2008, the Group spent £228,000 defending the claim
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27 Acquisition of subsidiary

On 6 December 2007 the group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Trafficlnk Limited for cash

consideration of £2,180,000 Trafficlink Limited 1s the parent company of a group of companies involved in gathenng,
editing and broadcasting journalistic traffic and travel information This transaction has been accounted for by the

purchase method of accounting

In addition to the purchase price of £2 18m, there 1s a further deferred, performance-related cash consideration of up
to £6 0 million payable by June 2009 The directors consider that it 1s unlikely that any of ttus deferred consideration

wili be paid

Net assets acquired

Intangible assets

Property plant and equipment

Trade and other recevables

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

Bank loans

Deferred tax liabilities relating to intangible assets
Loan

Goodwill

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash

Direclly attnbutable costs

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

The fair value adjustments recognised refated to

Book value
£

263,103

1,363,942

6,603
(1,030,294)
(537,835)

(8,320,000)

Fair value
£

1,969,510
263,103
1,363,942
6,603
(1,030,294)
(537.,835)
(551,463)
(8,320,000}

(8,254,481)

(6,836,434)

9,315,548

2,479,114

2,180,000
299,114

2,479,114

(2.479,114)

(531,232)
(3.010,346)

* intangible assets in respect of acquired brands, customer relationships and propnetary software in

accordance with IFRS 3 Business combinations, and

] deferred tax habiities in relation to the acquired intangible assets
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Notes to the financial statements

27 Acquisition of subsidiary {(continued)

The goodwill ansing on the acquisition of Traffichink Limited 1s attributable to the anticipated profitability of the
distnbuticn of the Group’s products in the new markets and the anticipated future operating synergies from the
combination

Traffichnk Limited contributed £1,429,265 revenue and £189,250 to the Group's profit before tax for the period
between the date of acquisitton and the balance sheet date

If the acquisiion of Traffichnk Limited had been completed on the first day of the financial year, group revenues for
the penod would have been £21,363,176 and group profit attnbutable to equity holders of the parent would have been
£3,696,787

28 Dwidends
2008 2007
£ £
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the penod
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008 of 1 Sp (2007 nil) per share 1,417,012 -

29 Borrowings
Undrawn borrowing facilities

At 31 March 2008, the group had available £8 millien {2007 £nil) of undrawn committed borrowing facilites in respect
of which all conditions precedent had been met
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Independent auditors’ report

We have audited the parent company financial statements of ITIS Holdings plc for the year ended 31 March 2008
which compnse the Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 7 These parent company financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of ITIS Holdings plc for the year ended 31 March 2008
and on the information in the directors' remuneration report that 1s descnbed as having been audited

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitied by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibitities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for prepanng the annual report and the parent company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdem Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Direclors' Responsibilities

QOur responsibility 15 to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland}

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and
whether the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the parent company
financial statements

in addition we report to you If, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, If we have not
received ali the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the other information contained tn the annual report as described in the contents section and consider
whether it 1s consistent with the audited parent company financial statements The other information compnses only
the directors’ report, the unaudited part of the directors' remuneration report and the statement of the chairman and
the chief executive We consider the implications for our report If we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
matenal inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements Our responsibiities do not extend to any
further information outside the annual report
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Independent auditors’ report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the parent company financial statements 1t also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropnate to the company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed

We ptanned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the Information and explanations which we considered
necessary In order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularty or error in
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adeguacy of the presentation of information in the parent company
financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion

« the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2008,

s the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985, and

+ the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

Delodde x (ouda <P

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester, United Kingdom

17 June 2008

67 ITIS HOLDINGS PLC




Company balance sheet
31 March 2008

Notes 2008 2007
£ £
Non-current assets
Investments 3 3,050,761 571,647
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 4 8,365,204 30,106
Cash and cash equivalents 248,618 9,295,639

8,613,822 9,325,745

Total assets 11,664,583 9,897,392

Current habilities

Trade and other payables 5 (3,402,876) (117,354}
Net current assets 5,210,946 9,208,381

Total habilities (3,402,876) {117,354)
Net assets 8,261,707 9,780,038

Capital and reserves

Called-up share capital 6 5,230,270 5,230,270
Share premium account 7 - 38,070,740
Retained earnings 7 3,031,437 (33,520,972)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 8,261,707 9,780,038
Total equity 8,261,707 9,780,038

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this company balance sheet

Signed on behalf of the Board

e RN\

S A Marks
Director

AD Fo
Direct:

17 June 2008
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Notes to the company financial statements
31 March 2008

1 Significant accounting pohcies

Basis of accounting
The separate financial statements of the company are presented as required by the Companies Act 1985 They have been
prepared under the histoncal cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and

law

The principal accounting policies are summansed below They have all been applied consistently throughout the year and
the preceding year

Investments

Fixed asset investments in subsidianes are shown at cost less provision for imparment

For investments in subsidianes acquired for consideration, including the 1ssue of shares qualhfying for merger relief, cost s
measured by reference to the nominal vatue only of the shares issued Any premium Is ignored

Financial habilities and equity

Financial labiities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered Into  An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its habilites

Equity instruments
Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

2 Profit for the year

As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 the company has elected not to present its own profit and
loss account for the year ITIS Holdings plc reported a loss for the financial year ended March 2008 of £1,518,331
{2007 £15,586,885)

The auditors’ remuneration for audit and other services 1s disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

3 Fixed asset Investments

2008 2007
£ £
Subsidianes 3,050,761 571,647
2008 2007
Cost £ £
At beginning of year 571,647 571,649
Additions 2,479,114 1,379,061
Disposals - {1,379,063)
At end of year 3,050,761 571,647
Provision for impairment
At beginning of year - -
Provision - {1,379,061)
Elimtnated on disposal - 1,379,061
At end of year - -
Net book value 3,050,761 571,647

The parent Company and the Group have investments in the following subsidiary undertakings which affect the profits
or net assets of the Group

Country of Percentage
Subsidiary undertakings incorporation Shares holding Principal activity
Integrated Transport UK £1 ordinary 100% Provision of traffic information
Information Services Limited
ITIS UK Limuted UK £1 ordinary 100% Prowision of traffic information
ITIS Traffic Services Limited  Israel NIS 002 ordinary 100% Research and development
Traffichink Lumited UK £1 ordinary 100% Provision of traffic information

All of the above subsidiary undertakings are unlisted and are held directly by ITIS Holdings plc, with the exception of
ITIS Traffic Services Limited To avoid a statement of excessive length, detalls of investments that are not significant
have been omitted

During the year, 100% of the share capital in Traffichnk Limited was acquired for consideration of £2,479,114 Detaills
of the acquisition are given in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

4 Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by group undertakings
VAT

Prepayments and accrued income

5 Creditors

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade creditors

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Accruals and deferred income

6 Called-up share capital

Authontsed share capital
339,106,585 ordinary shares of 2p each
32,178,683 deferred shares of 10p each

Allotted, called-up and fuily paid

100,620,099 ordinary shares of 2p each (2007 100,620,099 ordinary shares of 2p

each)
32,178,683 deferred shares of 10p each

2008 2007
£ £
8,320,000 -
20,151 21,625
25,053 8.481
8,365,204 30,106
2008 2007
£ £
31,379 3,194
3,305,272 70,840
66,225 43,320
3,402,876 117,354
2008 2007
£ £
6,782,132 6,782,132
3,217,868 3,217,868
10,000,000 10,000,000
2008 2007
£ £
2,012,402 2,012,402
3,217,868 3,217,868
5,230,270 5,230,270

The authorised share capital of the company 1s dvided into ordinary shares of 2p each and deferred shares of 10p
each The holders of the deferred shares are not entitled to receive notice or attend any general meeting of the

company and no dividends will be made in respect of such deferred shares On a retumn of capital on hquidation or
otherwise, no assets of the company available for distnbution among the members will be applied in making payments
to the holders of the deferred shares (unless distnbutions totalling £1,000,000,000 have been made to the holders of
the ordinary shares) No resolution proposed or passed by members of the company shall affect the class nghts of the
holders of the deferred shares The company has the nght to purchase the deferred shares for 1p in aggregate

Details of share options in1ssue are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

7 Reserves

Share Profit and

premium loss
account account Total
£ £ £
At 1 Apnl 2007 38,070,740 (33,520,972) 4,549,768
Cancellation of share premium account (38,070,740} 38,070,740 -
Retained loss for the year - (1,518,331) (1,518,331)
At 31 March 2008 - 3,031,437 3,031,437

Share premium

High Court approval was received on 23 January 2008 of the resolution passed at the Company's extraordinary
general meeting on 22 November 2007 for the elimination of an accumulated deficit on its profit and loss account of
£33,520,972 by the cancellation of the whole of the amount standing to the credit of its share premium account
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